STATES OF JERSEY



STATES OF JERSEY LAW 2005: ARTICLE 30A – MINISTERIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

Presented to the States on 10th July 2024 by the Chief Minister

STATES GREFFE



STATES OF JERSEY LAW 2005

ARTICLE 30A: LIST OF DELEGATIONS TO BE PUBLISHED



Contents

Introduction	2
Chief Minister	3
Minister for Children and Families	6
Minister for Education and Lifelong Learning	7
Minister for the Environment	9
Minister for External Relations	. 11
Minister for Health and Social Services	. 13
Minister for Housing	. 15
Minister for Infrastructure	. 16
Minister for International Development	. 19
Minister for Justice and Home Affairs	. 20
Minister for Social Security	. 21
Minister for Sustainable Economic Development	. 23
Minister for Treasury and Resources	. 26
Arm's Length Bodies (ALO) and States Owned Entities (SOE)	. 28
Endnotes	. 30

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 1 of 31



Introduction

The States of Jersey Law 2005 states that the Chief Minister shall establish, maintain, and publish a consolidated list of:

- i. The functions being discharged by the Chief Minister and by each Minister;
- ii. The functions delegated by the Chief Minister and each Minister, and to whom; and
- iii. which Minister is discharging the functions, for the time being, of another Minister (unless if so immediate and of such brief duration that it is not practicable to amend and publish the list to incorporate the information before the end of the period).¹

For each of their responsibilities, Ministers are individually accountable to the States Assembly, including for the actions of the departments and agencies which discharge them on their behalf, and will discharge their responsibilities in accordance with the Ministerial Code.²

If deemed required, Ministers may, with the consent of the Chief Minister, establish Ministerial Groups to discuss cross-portfolio matters to assist with the coordination of policy and consensus decision-making, and the terms of references for these will be published on gov.je.³

This report details functions and delegations as of the date it is published. If any further delegations are made post publishing, these will be available on the Government of Jersey and/or the States Assembly websites.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 2 of 31



Chief Minister

Overview

The Chief Minister provides long term strategic direction and the chairing of the Council of Ministers, which is responsible for the Island's common strategic policy; co-ordinating the Government's policies and administration; and prioritising executive and legislative proposals.

The Chief Minister is also responsible for a range of prominent policy areas, including constitutional affairs and population and migration policy; provides direction on government communications; is responsible for digital services across government; and, as Chair of the States Employment Board, has responsibility for the employment of public servants. The Chief Minister has concurrent responsibility with the Minister for External Relations and Financial Services for Jersey's common external relations policy; and has responsibility for liaison with the non-ministerial States Bodies, these being:

- Bailiff's Chambers
- Judicial Greffe
- Law Officers' Department
- Probation and After-Care Service (the Minister for Justice and Home Affairs assumes day-to-day responsibilities for liaison, as part of the wider justice portfolio)
- States Greffe
- Viscount's Department
- Office of the Lieutenant Governor
- Office of the Comptroller and Auditor General
- Office of the Official Analyst

Postholders

States Member	Position	Delegation(s)
<u>Deputy Lyndon</u> <u>Farnham</u>	Chief Minister	
<u>Deputy Tom</u> <u>Binet</u>	 Deputy Chief Minister; ⁴ and Assistant Minister¹ 	To provide advice to the Chief Minister on matters relating to other ministerial offices and roles they hold.
<u>Deputy Carina</u> <u>Alves</u>	Assistant Minister	 All powers and functions, conferred upon or vested in the Chief Minister under the Control of Housing and Work (Jersey) Law 2012.⁵ To provide advice to the Chief Minister on matters relating to other ministerial offices and roles they hold. Policy relating to promoting diversity, equality, and social inclusion.⁶

¹ Their appointment as an Assistant Minister enables the Deputy Chief Minister to engage in States Assembly business on behalf of the Chief Minister. Work is underway to amend the role of the Deputy Chief Minister to negate the need to appoint them as an Assistant Minister.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 3 of 31



States Member	Position	Delegation(s)
<u>Deputy Rose</u> <u>Binet</u>	Assistant Minister	To provide advice to the Chief Minister on matters relating to other ministerial offices and roles they hold.
Constable Simon Crowcroft	Assistant Minister	To provide advice to the Chief Minister on matters relating to other ministerial offices and roles they hold.
<u>Deputy</u> <u>Malcolm Ferey</u>	Assistant Minister	To provide advice to the Chief Minister on matters relating to other ministerial offices and roles they hold.
<u>Deputy lan</u> <u>Gorst</u>	Assistant Minister	All powers and functions, conferred upon or vested in the Chief Minister under the Control of Housing and Work (Jersey) Law 2012. ⁷ To provide advice to the Chief Minister on matters relating to other ministerial offices and roles they hold.

List of Responsibilities

Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
2(1)(e) initiative for high net-worth migration.	Office of the Chief Minister.
Chair of the Emergencies Council and coordination of Emergency Planning.	Justice and Home Affairs.
Constitutional Affairs.	Public Policy Directorate.
Corporate Risk Management.	Office of the Chief Minister.
Freedom of Information.	Office of the Chief Minister.
Government Communications.	Communications Directorate.
Government of Jersey Data Protection governance.	Modernisation & Digital.
Leadership of the Council of Ministers, including standards and political governance.	Office of the Chief Minister.
Legislation Advisory Panel.	Office of the Chief Minister.
Modernisation & Digital (Government ICT).	Modernisation & Digital.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 4 of 31



Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
People Services (Human Resources).	People Services.
Population and Migration Policy, including decisions under the Control of Housing and Work Law.	Public Policy Directorate.
Promoting diversity, equality, and social inclusion.	Public Policy Directorate.
States Employment Board and Jersey Appointments Commission.	People Services.
Statistics Jersey.	Statistics Jersey.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 5 of 31



Minister for Children and Families

Overview

The Minister is responsible for co-ordinating across government policies and actions which improve the well-being of children, including providing a first-class education service and supporting the development of skills, creativity, and lifelong learning.

Postholders

States Member	Position	Delegation(s)
<u>Constable</u> <u>Richard</u> <u>Vibert</u>	Minister	
<u>Deputy</u> <u>Malcolm</u> <u>Ferey</u>	Assistant Minister	 Young People's Services;⁸ and in the event that the Minister is unavailable or out of the Island: political responsibility for Children's Social Care, CAMHS,⁹ and all powers, and functions.¹⁰
<u>Deputy Rob</u> <u>Ward</u>	Assistant Minister	In the event that the Minister and Deputy Malcolm Ferey of St Saviour are both unavailable or out of the Island, all powers and functions conferred upon or vested in the Minister, including the power to make an enactment, and all other areas where the Minister would otherwise have to act and be advised. ¹¹

List of Responsibilities

Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
Children and Adolescent Mental Health Services.	Children, Young People, Education and Skills.
Children's services.	Children, Young People, Education and Skills.
Co-ordinating policies to safeguard children and support children's well-being.	Children, Young People, Education and Skills.
Youth Service.	Children, Young People, Education and Skills.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 6 of 31



Minister for Education and Lifelong Learning

Overview

The Minister is responsible for co-ordinating across government policies and actions which improve the well-being of children, including providing a first-class education service and supporting the development of skills, creativity, and lifelong learning.

Postholders

States Member	Position	Delegation(s)
<u>Deputy Rob</u> <u>Ward</u>	Minister	
<u>Deputy Carina</u> <u>Alves</u>	Assistant Minister	 Education Language Policy; Inclusion Policy; and Virtual School. In the event the Minister is unavailable or out of the Island, all powers, and functions. ¹²
<u>Constable</u> <u>Richard Vibert</u>	Assistant Minister	In the event the Minister and Deputy Carina Alves are unavailable or out of the Island, all powers, and functions. ¹³

List of Responsibilities

Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
Children's inclusion and early intervention.	Children, Young People, Education and Skills.
Departmental appeal hearings.	Children, Young People, Education and Skills.
Early Years.	Children, Young People, Education and Skills.
Educational standards and achievement.	Children, Young People, Education and Skills.
Highlands College.	Children, Young People, Education and Skills.
Post-16 higher and further education policy.	Children, Young People, Education and Skills.
Primary schools.	Children, Young People, Education and Skills.
Secondary schools.	Children, Young People, Education and Skills.
Skills policy.	Children, Young People, Education and Skills.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 7 of 31



Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
Special education schools.	Children, Young People, Education and Skills.
States of Jersey Library.	Children, Young People, Education and Skills.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 8 of 31



Minister for the Environment

Overview

The Minister is responsible for protecting and enhancing the Island's natural and built environment in the best interests of Islanders, supporting sustainable development, responding to the climate emergency, energy policy, and more generally, regulatory matters.

Postholders

States Member	Position	Delegation(s)
Deputy Steve Luce	Minister	
<u>Constable Mike</u> Jackson	Assistant Minister	In the event the Minister is unavailable or out of the Island, all powers, and functions. ¹⁴

List of Responsibilities

Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
Abattoir regulation.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Agricultural and Plant Health inspectorate.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Agricultural land control.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Building control.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Carbon neutrality policies.	Housing, Environment and Placemaking Directorate.
Care regulation.	Public Policy Directorate.
Development control.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Eco-active.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Energy policy.	Housing, Environment and Placemaking Directorate.
Environmental health regulation.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Environmental protection regulation.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Housing standards regulation.	Infrastructure and Environment.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 9 of 31



Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
Island Plan and spatial planning policy.	Housing, Environment and Placemaking Directorate.
Marine resources.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Meteorological services.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Natural environment.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Planning and building compliance.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Veterinary services and animal welfare regulation.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Waste regulation.	Infrastructure and Environment.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page ${\bf 10}$ of ${\bf 31}$



Minister for External Relations

Overview

The Minister is responsible for promoting Jersey internationally and supporting the Island's interests on the international stage, a responsibility held concurrently with the Chief Minister.

The Minister works closely with ministerial colleagues, helping to promote their policy objectives and securing economic, environmental, and social benefits for Jersey through external engagement.

States Member	Position	Delegation(s)
<u>Deputy lan</u> <u>Gorst</u>	Minister	
<u>Deputy</u> <u>Carolyn</u> <u>Labey</u>	Assistant Minister	 Full authority for: enhancing engagement with the Jersey diaspora community; engagement with the Honorary Consuls in Jersey; engagement with European communities in Jersey, and in their home nations; relations with New Jersey; cultural and educational diplomacy; collaboration with externally focused not-for-profit organisations which are based in Jersey; and Facilitating twinning or co-operation agreements, or the development of existing agreements, with partner and neighbouring towns and/or cities.¹⁵
<u>Deputy</u> <u>Elaine</u> <u>Millar</u>	Assistant Minister	Full authority for sanctions and asset freezing when the Minister is absent. ¹⁶ All other functions and responsibilities of the Minister, including in respect of External Relations, in circumstances where the Minister is away from the island and/or temporarily absent. ¹⁷
<u>Deputy Moz</u> <u>Scott</u>	Assistant Minister	 Intellectual Property (Unregistered Rights) (Jersey) Law 2011; Patents (Jersey) Law 1957; Registered Designs (Jersey) Law 1957; and Trade Marks (Jersey) Law 2000.¹⁸

Postholders

List of Responsibilities

Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
Air navigation, civil aviation, and air safety.	External Relations.
Channel Islands engagement.	External Relations.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 11 of 31



Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
Charities registration and regulation.	Department for the Economy.
EU Engagement.	External Relations.
EU–UK Trade and Cooperation Agreement.	External Relations.
Financial Services.	Department for the Economy.
Global markets.	External Relations.
Intellectual property.	Department for the Economy.
International agreements.	External Relations.
Multilateral engagement.	External Relations.
Overseas offices.	External Relations.
Sanctions and treaties.	External Relations.
UK Government Engagement.	External Relations.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 12 of 31



Minister for Health and Social Services

Overview

The Minister is responsible for delivering good quality health care services, promoting health and wellbeing for the community, and protecting the interests of frail and vulnerable adults.

Postholders

States Member	Position	Delegation(s)
<u>Deputy Tom</u> <u>Binet</u>	Minister	
<u>Deputy Rose</u> <u>Binet</u>	Assistant Minister	In the event the Minister is unavailable or out of the Island, all powers, and functions. ¹⁹
Deputy Andy Howell	Assistant Minister	In the event the Minister is unavailable or out of the Island, all powers, and functions. ²⁰ Women's health policy. ²¹
Deputy Barbara Ward	Assistant Minister	In the event the Minister is unavailable or out of the Island, all powers, and functions. ²²

List of Responsibilities

Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
65+ community and social service.	Health and Community Services.
65+ nursing and residential.	Health and Community Services.
Adult community support services.	Health and Community Services.
Adult mental health.	Health and Community Services.
Adults social work.	Health and Community Services.
Alcohol and drugs services.	Health and Community Services.
Clinical support, including, but not limited to, radiology, pathology, pharmacy, and physiotherapy.	Health and Community Services.
Crematorium.	Customer and Local Services.
Hospital Operations Support, including, but not limited to, non-clinical support, such as contracts, off-island treatment, emergency transfers.	Health and Community Services.



Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
Medical specialists & emergency care.	Health and Community Services.
New Healthcare Facilities Programme	Health and Community Services.
Occupational therapy.	Health and Community Services.
Primary Care strategy and governance.	Customer and Local Services.
Psychology.	Health and Community Services.
Public Health policy and delivery.	Public Health.
Speech and language.	Health and Community Services.
Strategic health policy.	Health Policy.
Surgical services.	Health and Community Services.
Theatres & anaesthetics.	Health and Community Services.
Women and Children, including paediatrics, gynaecology, and obstetrics.	Health and Community Services.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 14 of 31



Minister for Housing

Overview

The Minister is responsible for championing a good supply of housing across all categories of tenure, promoting affordability, and improving housing standards, as part of strong neighbourhoods and communities. As part of this role the Minister will work across government, collaborating with Ministers who hold complementary responsibilities, and with public and private partners, to ensure the delivery of appropriate housing as part of sustainable communities.

Postholders

States Member	Position	Delegation(s)
<u>Deputy Sam</u> <u>Mézec</u>	Minister	
Deputy Carina Alves	Assistant Minister	In the event the Minister is unavailable or out of the Island, all powers, and functions. ²³

List of Responsibilities

Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
Administration of the affordable Housing Gateway, Housing Advice, and Homelessness Services.	Customer and Local Services.
Long-term housing strategy.	Housing, Environment and Placemaking Directorate.
Policies to support housing delivery.	Housing, Environment and Placemaking Directorate.
Policies regarding residential tenancies and lodging houses.	Housing, Environment and Placemaking Directorate.
Regulation of residential tenancies, including deposit protection, and lodging houses.	Infrastructure & Environment.
Social housing policy, including relations with Providers.	Housing, Environment and Placemaking Directorate.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 15 of 31



Minister for Infrastructure

Overview

The Minister is responsible for the government's property portfolio, maintaining our open spaces, gardens, and amenities; managing and maintaining the Island's transport, traffic, road systems and the waste, sewerage, and recycling facilities; and leading on sustainable transport to meet the needs of the community.

Postholders

States Member	Position	Delegation(s)
<u>Constable Andy</u> <u>Jehan</u>	Minister	
Constable Simon Crowcroft	Assistant Minister	In the event the Minister is unavailable or out of the Island, all powers, and functions. ²⁴

List of Responsibilities

Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
Abattoir.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Animal carcass incinerator.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Arboriculture service.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Bus service.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Capital project delivery.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Car parks and parking control.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Cleaning services.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Climate change adaptation and mitigation.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Coastal engineering.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Drainage design and records.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Driver and Vehicle Standards (DVS).	Infrastructure and Environment.
Energy recovery facility operations.	Infrastructure and Environment.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 16 of 31



Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
Government of Jersey parks and gardens.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Highways maintenance.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Highways road signs and marking.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Internal health and safety.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Jersey fleet management.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Liquid and solid waste strategy.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Liquid waste network operations.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Mechanical & electrical engineering.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Network and traffic management.	Infrastructure and Environment.
On-island transport policy.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Property Holdings.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Public realm.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Public sports and leisure facilities.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Recycling operations.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Road and beach cleaning.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Sewage treatment works.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Solid waste management & recovery.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Sustainable transport policy.	Housing, Environment and Placemaking Directorate.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 17 of 31



Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
Tanker service.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Taxi-cab service.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Technical support services.	Infrastructure and Environment.
Transport planning.	Infrastructure and Environment.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page ${\bf 18}$ of ${\bf 31}$



Minister for International Development

Overview

The Minister is the Chair of the Jersey Overseas Aid Commission ("the commission"), and, in conjunction with the commission, is responsible for promoting economic and social development in developing countries overseas, and humanitarian aid overseas. The Minister is also responsible for co-ordinating work across government to promote an inclusive sense of Island identity and culture.

Postholders

States Member	Position	Delegation(s)
<u>Deputy Carolyn</u> <u>Labey</u>	Minister	

List of Responsibilities

Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
Development Grants – supporting sustainable economic and human development.	Jersey Overseas Aid Commission.
Facilitating the efforts of individuals and organisations to provide overseas aid.	Jersey Overseas Aid Commission.
Humanitarian response to overseas emergencies.	Jersey Overseas Aid Commission.
Island Identity.	Public Policy Directorate.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 19 of 31



Minister for Justice and Home Affairs

Overview

The Minister is responsible for supporting and maintaining a safe and inclusive community and leading on justice policy and relations with the justice system.

Postholders

States Member	Position	Delegation(s)
<u>Deputy Mary Le</u> <u>Hegarat</u>	Minister	
Constable Richard Vibert	Assistant Minister	In the event the Minister is unavailable or out of the Island, all powers, and functions. ²⁵

List of Responsibilities

Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
Emergency Services Control Centre.	Justice and Home Affairs.
Criminal justice and community safety policy.	Justice and Home Affairs.
Firearms policy.	Justice and Home Affairs.
Jersey Customs and Immigration Service.	Justice and Home Affairs.
Jersey Field Squadron and Cadet Corps.	Justice and Home Affairs.
Justice policy.	Public Policy Directorate.
Marriage and divorce policy.	Public Policy Directorate.
Office of the Superintendent Registrar.	Justice and Home Affairs.
States of Jersey Ambulance Service.	Justice and Home Affairs.
States of Jersey Fire and Rescue Service.	Justice and Home Affairs.
States of Jersey Police.	Justice and Home Affairs.
States of Jersey Prison Service.	Justice and Home Affairs.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 20 of 31



Minister for Social Security

Overview

The Minister is responsible for helping people in Jersey to achieve and maintain financial independence, including supporting employment and provision for pensions in older age, and to provide financial safeguards to the most vulnerable in our community.

Postholders

States Member	Position	Delegation(s)
<u>Deputy</u> <u>Lyndsay</u> Feltham	Minister	
<u>Deputy</u> <u>Sam</u> <u>Mézec</u>	Assistant Minister	In the event that the Minister is unavailable or out of the Island, the Minister delegated all powers and functions conferred upon or vested in the Minister, including the powers to make an enactment, and all other areas where the Minister would otherwise have to act and be advised. ²⁶

List of Responsibilities

Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
Benefits Policy, including supporting those on lower incomes to manage cost of living increases.	Public Policy Directorate.
Collection of Contributions.	Revenue Jersey.
Disability Strategy.	Customer and Local Services.
Health and Safety Inspectorate.	Justice and Home Affairs.
Pension and Benefit payments.	Customer and Local Services.
Pension Policy and coordinating government response to ageing society.	Public Policy Directorate.
Prohibition of certain types of discrimination.	Public Policy Directorate.
Promotion of the third sector and voluntary groups.	Customer and Local Services.
Regulation of employment activities, including employment relations, and minimum and living wage.	Public Policy Directorate.
Supporting people into employment.	Customer and Local Services.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 21 of 31



Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
Sustainability of the Social Security scheme, Long Term Care Scheme, and Health Insurance Fund.	Public Policy Directorate.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 22 of 31



Minister for Sustainable Economic Development

Overview

The Minister is responsible for supporting a diverse and thriving business environment and sustainable economy, promoting productivity improvements, improving job opportunities, and promoting sporting, cultural, and leisure activities that enrich Islanders' lives.

Postholders

States Member	Position	Delegation(s)
Deputy Kirsten Morel	Minister	
Constable Simon Crowcroft	Assistant Minister	Central markets policy.
Constable Andy Jehan	Assistant Minister	Sports policy, the promotion of sports, and sports development.
<u>Deputy Moz Scott</u>	Assistant Minister	 Answering questions, making statements, lodging, and proposing Propositions, and presenting Reports and Comments as relates to delegated legislation:²⁷ Electronic Communications (Jersey) Law 2000. Telecommunications (Jersey) Law 2002. Data Protection (Jersey) Law 2018.

List of Responsibilities

Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
Beach regulation and lifeguarding.	Department for the Economy.
Broadcasting.	Department for the Economy.
Channel Islands Lottery.	Treasury and Exchequer.
Commercial air and sea transport.	Department for the Economy.
Competition policy.	Department for the Economy.
Consumer protection, including trading standards.	Department for the Economy.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 23 of 31



Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
Culture, arts, and heritage.	Department for the Economy.
Cyber Security (Island-wide).	Department for the Economy.
Data Protection policy.	Department for the Economy.
Digital economy.	Department for the Economy.
Economic policy.	Department for the Economy.
Economics Unit.	Department for the Economy.
Gambling policy.	Department for the Economy.
Inward Investment and export policy.	Department for the Economy.
Liquor licensing.	Department for the Economy.
Maritime policy, including safety at sea.	Department for the Economy.
Ports of Jersey policy.	Department for the Economy.
Productivity growth, diversification, and innovation.	Department for the Economy.
Public Records legislation.	Department for the Economy.
Regulation of business.	Department for the Economy.
Retail economy.	Department for the Economy.
Rural and marine economy.	Department for the Economy.
Ships registry.	Department for the Economy.
Sports policy.	Department for the Economy.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 24 of 31



Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate
Telecommunications.	Department for the Economy.
Visitor economy.	Department for the Economy.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page ${f 25}$ of ${f 31}$



Minister for Treasury and Resources

Overview

The Minister is responsible for looking after Jersey's finances and assets and ensuring responsible use of public funds in the best interests of Islanders.

Postholders

States Member	Position	Delegation(s)
Deputy Elaine Millar	Minister	
<u>Deputy lan Gorst</u>	Assistant Minister	In the event the Minister is unavailable or out of the Island, all powers, and functions and the ability to answer questions in the States Assembly on behalf of the Minister. ²⁸

List of Responsibilities

Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate		
Accounting services.	Treasury and Exchequer.		
Central procurement (commercial services).	Treasury and Exchequer.		
Financial performance.	Treasury and Exchequer.		
Financial planning.	Treasury and Exchequer.		
Financial processing (payables and receivables).	Treasury and Exchequer.		
Internal audit.	Treasury and Exchequer.		
International tax agreements.	Treasury and Exchequer.		
Investment appraisal.	Treasury and Exchequer.		
Investments strategy and management.	Treasury and Exchequer.		
Pension Fund administration.	Treasury and Exchequer.		
Revenue Jersey.	Treasury and Exchequer.		

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 26 of 31



Responsibility	Lead Department or Directorate	
Shareholder functions.	Treasury and Exchequer.	
Strategic finance.	Treasury and Exchequer.	
Tax information exchange agreements.	Cabinet Office.	
Tax policy.	Treasury and Exchequer.	

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page ${\bf 27}$ of ${\bf 31}$



Arm's Length Bodies (ALO) and States Owned Entities (SOE)

Introduction

Ministers are ultimately responsible for any external bodies of the Government of Jersey. The following schedule identifies which ministerial office holds responsibility for each ALO and SOE; however, for avoidance of doubt, responsibility for an ALO or SOE does not negate the responsibility of another ministerial office for the policy that they are required to accord with.

Schedule of ALOs and SOEs

Name	Туре	Responsible Ministerial Office
Digital Jersey.	ALO	Sustainable Economic Development.
Employ Jersey (Jersey Employment Trust).	ALO	Social Security.
Jersey Advisory and Conciliation Service.	ALO	Social Security.
Jersey Arts Centre Association.	ALO	Sustainable Economic Development.
Jersey Arts Trust.	ALO	Sustainable Economic Development.
Jersey Business Limited.	ALO	Sustainable Economic Development.
Jersey Citizens Advice Bureau.	ALO	Social Security.
Jersey Consumer Council.	ALO	Sustainable Economic Development.
Jersey Finance Limited.	ALO	Sustainable Economic Development.
Jersey Heritage Trust.	ALO	Sustainable Economic Development.
Jersey Opera House.	ALO	Sustainable Economic Development.
Jersey Sport.	ALO	Sustainable Economic Development.
Visit Jersey Limited.	ALO	Sustainable Economic Development.
Andium Homes.	SOE	Treasury and Resources.
Jersey Electricity (partly owned).	SOE	Treasury and Resources.
Jersey Post.	SOE	Treasury and Resources.
Jersey Water (partly owned).	SOE	Treasury and Resources.
JT Group.	SOE	Treasury and Resources.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 28 of 31



Name	Туре	Responsible Ministerial Office
Ports of Jersey.	SOE	Treasury and Resources.
States of Jersey Development Company.	SOE	Treasury and Resources.

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page ${\bf 29}$ of ${\bf 31}$



Endnotes

¹ See Articles 27 and 30A of the 'States of Jersey Law 2005', Jersey Legal Information Board (<u>link</u>).

² See 'The Codes of Conduct & Practice for Ministers and Assistant Ministers' (R.31/2024), presented by the Council of Minister, 27 February 2024, States Assembly (<u>link</u>).
 ³ See 'How the Council of Ministers works', 'Ministerial Groups' section, Government of Jersey (link).

⁴ The Deputy Chief Minister's powers are as stated in law; see Article 27(1) of the 'States of Jersey Law 2005', Jersey Legal Information Board (<u>link</u>). They also represent the Chief Minister and lead on pieces of work on request.

⁵ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Chief Minister – Control of Housing and Work (Jersey) Law 2012 & Register of Names and Addresses (Jersey) Law 2012' (R.40/2024), presented by the Chief Minister, 8 March 2024, States Assembly (<u>link</u>).
 ⁶ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Chief Minister – Diversity, Equality and Inclusion Policy' (R.71/2024), presented by the Chief Minister, 30 April 2024, States Assembly (<u>link</u>).

⁷ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Chief Minister – Control of Housing and Work (Jersey) Law 2012 & Register of Names and Addresses (Jersey) Law 2012' (R.40/2024), presented by the Chief Minister, 8 March 2024, States Assembly (link).
 ⁸ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Minister for Children and Families – Appointment of Assistant Minister' (R.35/2024), presented by the Minister for Children and Families, 29 February 2024, States Assembly (link).

⁹ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Minister for Children and Education – Appointment of Two Assistant Ministers' (R.14/2024), presented by the Minister for Children and Education, 6 February 2024, States Assembly (<u>link</u>). Note in the period since these delegations were made, responsibility for Skills Jersey has transferred to the Minister for Education and Lifelong Learning. As such, they are not included in the summary as the delegation is now otiose.

¹⁰ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Minister for Children and Families – Appointment of Assistant Minister' (R.35/2024), presented by the Minister for Children and Families, 29 February 2024, States Assembly (<u>link</u>).

¹¹ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Minister for Children and Families – Delegation to Assistant Minister' (R.54/2024), presented by the Minister for Children and Families, 8 April 2024, States Assembly (<u>link</u>).

¹² See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Minister for Education and Lifelong Learning – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.36/2024), presented by the Minister for Education and Lifelong Learning, 4 March 2024, States Assembly (link).
 ¹³ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Minister for Education and Lifelong Learning – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.36/2024), presented by the Lifelong Learning – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.36/2024), presented by the Lifelong Learning – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.36/2024), presented by the Lifelong Learning – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.36/2024), presented by the Lifelong Learning – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.36/2024), presented by the Lifelong Learning – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.36/2024), presented by the Lifelong Learning – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.36/2024), presented by the Lifelong Learning – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.36/2024), presented by the Lifelong Learning – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.36/2024), presented by the Lifelong Learning – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.36/2024), presented by the Lifelong Learning – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.36/2024), presented by the Lifelong Learning – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.36/2024), presented by the Lifelong Learning – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.36/2024), presented by the Lifelong Learning – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.36/2024), presented by the Lifelong Learning – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.36/2024), presented by the Lifelong Learning – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.36/2024), presented by the Lifelong Learning – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.36/2024), presented by the Lifelong Learning – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.36/2024), presented by the Lifelong Learning – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.36/2024), presented by the Lifelong Learning – Appointment (R.3

Minister for Education and Lifelong Learning, 4 March 2024, States Assembly (<u>link</u>). ¹⁴ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Minister for the Environment – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.17/2024), presented by the Minister for the Environment, 6 February 2024, States Assembly (<u>link</u>).

¹⁵ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Minister for External Relations – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.25/2024), presented by the Minister for External Relations, 16 February 2034, States Assembly (<u>link</u>).

¹⁶ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Minister for External Relations – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.25/2024), presented by the Minister for External Relations, 16 February 2024, States Assembly (<u>link</u>).

¹⁷ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Minister for External Relations – Delegation of Financial Services, presented by the Minister for External Relations, States Assembly (link).



¹⁸ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Minister for External Relations – Appointment of Assistant Minister' (R.82/2024), presented by the Minister for External Relations, 21 May 2024, States Assembly (<u>link</u>).

¹⁹ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Minister for Health and Social Services – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.18/2024), presented by the Minister for Health and Social Services, 6 February 2024, States Assembly (<u>link</u>).

²⁰ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Minister for Health and Social Services – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.18/2024), presented by the Minister for Health and Social Services, 6 February 2024, States Assembly (<u>link</u>).

²¹ See 'States Of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation Of Functions – Minister For Health And Social Services – Delegation Of Women's Health Policy' (R.96/2024), presented by the Minister for Health and Social Services, 6 June 2024, States Assembly (<u>link</u>).

²² See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Minister for Health and Social Services – Appointment of Assistant Ministers' (R.18/2024), presented by the Minister for Health and Social Services, 6 February 2024, States Assembly (<u>link</u>).

²³ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Minister for Housing and Communities – Appointment of Assistant Minister' (R.19/2024), presented by the Minister for Housing and Communities, 7 February 2024, States Assembly (link).

²⁴ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Minister for Infrastructure – Appointment of Assistant Minister' (R.22/2024), presented by the Minister for Infrastructure, 9 February 2024, States Assembly (<u>link</u>).

²⁵ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions - Minister for Justice and Home Affairs – Appointment of Assistant Minister' (R.16/2024), presented by the Minister for Justice and Home Affairs, 6 February 2024, States Assembly (<u>link</u>).

²⁶ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Minister for Social Security – Appointment of Assistant Minister' (R.48/2024), presented by the Minister for Social Security, 20 March 2024, States Assembly (link).

²⁷ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Minister for Sustainable Economic Development – Appointment of Assistant Minister' (R.13/2024), presented by the Minister for Sustainable Economic Development, 6 February 2024, States Assembly (link).
 ²⁸ See 'States of Jersey Law 2005: Delegation of Functions – Minister for Treasury and Resources – Appointment Of Assistant Minister' (R.20/2024), presented by the Minister for Treasury and Resources, 7 February 2024, States Assembly (link).

States of Jersey Law 2005: Article 30A: List of Delegations to be Published | Page 31 of 31